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Glasgow/ formerly Aik»n'a Tavern or Aifcentown, has been a local religious and 
commercial center since early in the eighteenth century.

The AiXen's Tavern Historic District encompasses the surviving portion of the 
nineteenth-century crossroads village of Glasgow. Although there is heavy 
cpiwnercial Intrusion to the south, the northern part of the village remains 
relatively undisturbed. 'TWO churches, three houses, a shop, and a row of tene­ 
ments, constitute the built environment that is now visible aboveground.

Archaeological remains include the site of Aiken.'s Tavern, General Howe's head­ 
quarters after the Battle of epoch's Bridge. l Since the surviving structures in 
th* district were not the first on their sites, there probably are earlier remains 
to be found. , , . . . . .. , . . . ,

The Inventory

PENCADER CHURCH

The principal structure in the district is the Pencader Presbyterian Church (M-1B9), 
a two-story brick structure in a large cemetery on the east side of Route 896, and 
north of Route 40.

A square belfry and a spire crown the low gable of the western facade, 
trim brick pilasters.

Stone capitals

The low first story t occupied by the Sunday School, features short windows with 
shutters and eight-over-eight sash, upstairs, the singltt large meeting room has 
tall forty-light windows that give the building its lofty appearance. In the front 
are three bays separated by pilasters. On the sides, there are four windows in 
each story. Two stairways from the vestibule provide access to the second story. 
The auditorium contains a west gallery and a chancel framed by classic columns. The 
nineteenth-century furnishings are still in place.

TWO HOUSES &t

Immediately to the north of the church are two, frame nineteenth-century houses with 
wide porches and their outbuildings (N-38B3) .Behind them, on Route B96, is a snail 
modern house, the only intrusion in the

Th* Methodist Church is a frame, two-story structure similar in general style to the 
Presbyterian Church. It contains a first-floor Sunday school and a second-floor 
auditorium. Beside the porch are two square windows on edge, as diamonds} otherwise, 
the church is not embellished.
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MAMSE

The manse (N-3B85) is a three-story, three-bay brick house with a low hipped roof. 
There is a porch covering the first-floor front. It stands on the brow of the 
hill leading down to Muddy Run.

TAVERM SITE

The site of Aiken's Tavern (N-1490) is marked by a state marker in the Methodist j
churchyard. The exact tavern site is not' identified, but it is known to have (
stood within a few yards of the highway marker. i

MIDDLETOH HOUSE

The Hiddleton House (N-870) is a large, two-story brick, early-nineteenth-century 
house across the road from Pencader Church. The two sections were built at one 
time, even though they have different floor levels and roof lines.

The! facade is laid in flemish bond with a chamfered water table. Dog-ear trim and 
six-panel doors survive on the front doors of both parts. Main rooms inside are 
decorated with dog-ear surrounds, chair rails, panelled window casings, dentil 
cornices, and graining.

The facade brickwork is very smooth and even-colored, with narrow mortar joints. 
The sides are laid in common brick. A box cornice survives on both sections. A 
well-preserved pair of Victorian porches covers the first floor of the facade.

SHOP BUILDING

On the south side of the Middleton House property is a large, barn-like frame shop 
building (N-3882).

GLASGOW BANK

The westbound lane of U. S. 40, formerly the Newcastle and French Town Turnpike, 
separates most of the district from a row known as the Old Glasgow Bank or 
Mechanics Row (N-1067). There are now three dwellings in the row, two of brick 
and one frame. The western part of the brick section has two entries, indicating 
that it was once two units.
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The brick section is laid in common bond, with rusticated wood lintels and a cor­ 
belled biick cornice, A frame porch covers the first-floor facade of the entire 
row. It was originally built as a row of rental houses, probably by a speculator 
during one of the construction projects in the area early in the nineteenth century,
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Aiken's Tavern Historic District stands on the Welsh Tract; 30,000 acres in 
western New Castle County; granted in'1701 to ft group of Welsh land speculators;

The-grant was subdivided into large farms, most of which were sold to Welsh
settlers. They called the place Pencader, or "high seat," which is now the name
of the hundred.     . > 

The Welsh improved the roads across the peninsula, part of the main land route be­ 
tween the northern and southern colonies. A,Presbyterian meeting houue and a tavern 
formed thtt nucleus of ft community, at the point where the trans-peninsular road 
crossed a main north-south route. Construction of the abortive Chesapeake and 
Delaware feeder canal in 1804 brought traffic through the Aiken's Tavern crossroads.

When Newcastle and French Town Turnpike was built in 1818, the crossroad at Aiken's 
Tavern became a busy way station.

Religious Significance;

Pencader Presbyterian Church was established on the Welsh Tract around 1702 and 
constituted a church before 1710. The present brick church, built in 1652, occupies 
the site of an earlier frame structure.

Pencader is one of Delaware's oldest Presbyterian churches, and one of two churches 
established by the Welsh. The other church, Welsh Tract Baptist, still stands on 
the opposite side of Iron Hill.

Samuel Davies (1723-1761), fourth president of Princeton, was the moat famous of 
many Presbyterian leaders to come from this church. This was one of the first 
constituent churches of the New Castle Presbytery, when it was established in 1717.

The Methodist church stands on or near the site of Aiken's Tavern. The first 
structure, built in 1833, was brick, but the present church, built in 1884, is frame.

Architectural Signifiancej '

Significant architectural remains in the district may be divided into two periods) 
the federal, represented by the Middleton House and the Bank} and the Italianate, 
represented by the two churches and the mans*.

L
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Pencader Presbyterian Church exemplifies a church style that once was popular 
throughout the state. It stands in a four-acre cemetery that is bisected by a 
small stream. Landscaping in the cemetery is a picturesque blend of natural and 
wan-made features, including a bridge* an iron fence with elaborate gate, willows, 
evergreens, and, of course, tombstones from the eighteenth century to the present.

The Methodist Church and the brick house next to it are also built in the Italianate 
style, and also are well-preserved. '

Of the two-story Delaware rural churches with upstairs auditoriums, the two Glasgow 
examples are among the least altered*

The Bank row and the Middleton House are examples of federal architecture, built 
for opposite ends of the economic spectrum. Both are virtually intact Rpecii'-ens 
of their types. j

Military Significance; |

On September 3, 1777, ft detachment of the American army under General Maxwell estab- .
lished a line from Aiken's Tavern to Cooch's Bridge, in an uffort to slow the British j
eastward advance from Mead of Elk. The battle that ensued, known as the Battle of i
Cooch's Bridge, bought time for Washington, who was assembling a force to defend \
Philadelphia- j 

  ' " !
British Ger-.-val Howe hau his headquarters at Aiken's Tavern from September 3 to j
September 0, >fter the Battle of Cooch's Bridge. The old Pencader Church, on the |
site of the present one, was the British army field hospital. i

j



..,.
MAJOR BIBLIOGPAPHICAL REFERENCES
Coech, Francia A. Llt'tla Known History of NewarK, De.nware and Environi.

Hewarkt Pres» of K»1U, 1936.
Scharf* J.'Thomas, Editor, Hittory off Delaware, Philadelphia* L. 3. Richard*, 1888. 
Cooch, Edward *f. oalawara) Historic Events. Cooch's Bridget The author, 1946.

[BGEOGR APHIC AL DATA

(*** continuation sheet) 
. 2, o BflLiPUi3.r6l 0.3.01 1 4. 3l B. 4J 

.ZONE EASTINff NORTHING

VERBAL BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION

The^diatrict begins^at the east end of Pancader cemetery at-Routa 40. Thence, the
boundary follow* the south' fanc« line weatward' about 500 feet to the center of Route 
B96. Th*nc*/;it follows the centerline northward about 100 feet to the south line 
of the Middleton House property. Thence/ it follows the south;; line westward about 
150 feet frow the right-of-way. It then follow* the property line southward' 75 feet 
to thy^floute 40 right-of-way. Thence, it crosses the road to the east line of the
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Mechanics' Row properties, Thence, it proceeds southward 158 feet along that 
property line. ,

The boundary than follow* t'h'ft' rear lot lines westward about'10B feet to a cross 
street. Thence, it follows the cross street 158 feet along the west line of the 
row. Crossing Route 40 in ainortherly direction, the^ boundary intersects the west 
lin« of the Middiftton House property ; and follows it for 310 feat, Still following 
the Middleton House lin*, th* boundary proceeds easterly 202 feet and'then goes to 
the Middle of Routfi 896. Then it follows the center line about 550 foet more or 
l«ss to the point1 of'intersection of the Manse property north line. The boundary 
then follows the Manse boundary eastward 292.23 feet from the right-of-way line.

Along the re|uv. line of this property and the adjoining property, the boundary pro­ 
ceeds southward about 650 feet more or less to the north fence of the cemetery* 
Th*nc*, it fallows the north fence line about 200 feet easterly to the east fence. 
Thence, it follows the east fence to the point of beginning.

The nominated properties are shown on New Castle County Property Map No. So, 
compiled in March 1970 by L. Robert Kiroball. The parcels within the district «re 
identified therein by the following parcel numbers and acreagesi

•'. : '•" •">'•-,

Number Acreage State Historical Survey No.

62 None^given N-10G7
£3 None' given Krl067
43 l;30 H-870, N-38Q2
72 4.11 : '"189,
69 1.62 N-38li3 ,
70 Hone given N-1490, H-3884
71 None given N-3883
68 1.01 N-3B85
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